
 

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers  
are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

APOLOGIES Committee Services  CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
Doug Wilkinson  Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  

     
   06 November 2024 

Dear Councillor 

 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 
 

COUNCIL  

 

on THURSDAY 14 NOVEMBER 2024 at 7.30 pm 

 

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon. 

 
Please Note: All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’s YouTube channel for 
those wishing to observe remotely. Public participants wishing to speak remotely at a meeting can 
continue to do so via Microsoft Teams. 
 
To register your request to speak / attend in person please complete a Public Access form (to be 
submitted by 12noon on the working day before the Committee meeting). All requests will be 
considered on a first-come, first-served basis. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Chief Executive 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:  

CHAIRPERSON Councillor K M H Lagan 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON Councillor R G Pratt 

COUNCILLORS M G Bassenger 
V J Bell 
D O Bown 
S J Burwood 
J Driver 
M F L Durham, CC 
A Fittock 
A S Fluker 
L J Haywood 
J C Hughes 
K Jennings 
A M Lay 
W J Laybourn 

REVISED 
DOCUMENT PACK 

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u


 

Page 2 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

N R Miller 
S J N Morgan 
C P Morley 
M G Neall 
N G F Shaughnessy 
R H Siddall 
U C G Siddall-Norman 
N D Spenceley 
P L Spenceley 
W Stamp, CC 
E L Stephens 
J C Stilts 
N J Swindle 
M E Thompson 
S White 
L L Wiffen 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


 

Page 3 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

AGENDA 
COUNCIL 

THURSDAY 14 NOVEMBER 2024 
 
1. Chairperson's notices   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes - 8 October 2024  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
 To confirm the Minutes of the extraordinary Council meeting held on 8 October 2024 

(copy enclosed). 
 

4. Declaration of Interest   
 
 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other 

Registrable interests and Non-Registrable Interests relating to items of business on 
the agenda having regard to paragraph 9 and Appendix B of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.  
 
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).  
 

5. Public Questions   
 
 To receive questions from members of the public, of which prior notification in writing 

has been received (no later than noon two clear working days before the day of the 
Council meeting). 
 
Should you wish to submit a question please complete the online form at 
www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation.  
 

6. Chairperson's Announcements   
 
7. Minutes of Meetings of the Council   
 
 To note that since the last Council, up until Wednesday 6 November 2024 (Council 

agenda dispatch) the following Committees have met, and to receive any questions in 
accordance with Council and Committee Procedure Rule 6 (2). 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (meeting as the Crime and 
Disorder Committee) 

10 October 2024 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (special meeting) 15 October 

South Eastern Area Planning Committee 16 October 

Central Area Planning Committee 23 October 
 
 

8. Questions in accordance with Procedure Rule 6(3) of which notice has been 
given   

 
 
 
 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=4211
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=4324
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=4212
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=4208


 

Page 4 

For further information please see the Council's website. 

9. Council Constitution Update - New Corporate Leadership Structure  (Pages 13 - 
22) 

 
 To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer (copy enclosed). 

 
10. Questions to the Leader of the Council in accordance with Procedure Rule 1 

(3)(m)   
 
11. Business by reason of special circumstances considered by the Chairperson to 

be urgent   
 
12. Exclusion of the Public and Press   
 
 To resolve that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test. 
 

13. Leisure Contract Procurement Update  (Pages 23 - 58) 
 
 To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery (copy enclosed). 

 
14. Updated Capital & Investment, Minimum Revenue Provision and Treasury 

Management Strategies 2024 / 25  (Pages 59 - 88) REVISED 
 
 To consider the report of the Chief Finance Officer (copy enclosed). 

 
 

 
 

NOTICES 
 
Recording of Meeting 
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 
part of this meeting held in open session.   
 
Fire 
We do not have any fire alarm testing scheduled for this meeting. In the event of a fire, a 
siren will sound. Please use either of the two marked fire escape routes. Once out of the 
building please proceed to the designated muster point located on the grass verge by the 
police station entrance. Please gather there and await further instruction. If you feel you may 
need assistance to evacuate the building, please make a member of Maldon District Council 
staff aware. 
 
Health and Safety 
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.   
 
Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV) 
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV. 
 
Lift 
Please be aware, there is not currently lift access to the Council Chamber.  

 
 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


MINUTES of 
COUNCIL 
8 OCTOBER 2024 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Councillor K M H Lagan 

Vice-Chairperson Councillor R G Pratt 

Councillors M G Bassenger, D O Bown, J Driver, M F L Durham, CC, 
A Fittock, A S Fluker, L J Haywood, J C Hughes, K Jennings, 
A M Lay, W J Laybourn, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, 
M G Neall, R H Siddall, U C G Siddall-Norman, 
N D Spenceley, P L Spenceley, W Stamp, CC, E L Stephens, 
J C Stilts, N J Swindle and M E Thompson 

326. CHAIRPERSON'S NOTICES

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and went through some general 
housekeeping arrangements for the meeting. 

327. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors V J Bell, S J Burwood and S 
White. 

328. MINUTES - 12 SEPTEMBER 2024

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 12 September 2024 
be approved and confirmed. 

329. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were none. 

330. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were none. 

331. CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairperson informed the Council that he would be suspending Procedure Rule 
4(8)3 the requirement to stand when addressing the Chairperson. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



The Chairperson advised the Council of the recent passing of ex-Councillor Neil 
Pudney on Sunday 6 October. Neil Pudney had stood as a District Councillor for the 
Burnham North Ward from 2007 to 2019 and at this sad time on behalf of the Council 
the Chairperson sent sincere condolences to his family and friends. All present in the 
chamber then stood for a few moments in remembrance of Councillor Neil Pudney. 

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1(4)a, the Chairperson informed the Council he 
would be varying the order of business and moving the Agenda Item 14 – 2024 / 25 
Schedule of Meeting up the agenda to be considered prior to Agenda item 12 – 
Approval of Absence of Councillor. 

The Chairperson advised that the Leader of the Council had received a letter from the 
Chairman of the Essex Historic Military Museum Association (the Association) 
regarding storage of their historic fleet. The Leader referred to the Director of Service 
Delivery to provide some further detail. The Director explained how the Association (a 
Chelmsford based registered charity) had recently lost its historic vehicle storage and 
maintenance facility in Woodham Ferrers and this put the vehicles and charitable aims 
of the Association at risk. The Council has been asked if it was able to help with the 
search for a new storage facility. The Director advised that the Council had no suitable 
land or buildings in its ownership and asked Members to reflect upon their own local 
areas and any Parish Council, business or farm which may be able to assist. If 
Members advised the Director of any contacts or suggestions then contact information 
for the Association could be shared. 

332. STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE - 26 SEPTEMBER 2024

The Council considered the recommendations coming forward from the Strategy and 
Resources Committee held on 26 September 2024. 

Motion from Councillor N J Swindle (Motion 05/2024) 

RESOLVED  

(i) That the Council confirms that the principle of tenants paying for their utility
costs in full, remains within the Asset Management Strategy; 

(ii) that the Council offers a 12-month transitional arrangement for any non- rent
paying tenants of Brickhouse Farm affected by the new Asset Management 
Strategy, with full payment of utility costs commencing in April 2025. 

Domestic Abuse Policy 

RESOLVED 

(i) that the Residents Domestic Abuse Policy (attached as Appendix 1 to the
Council agenda) be adopted, promoted and its processes incorporated into 
business-as-usual activities;  

(ii) That a ‘Recognise, Respond and Refer Model’ (attached as Appendix 2 to the
Council) be adopted across all services giving a whole Council approach to how 
the Council responds to those reporting Domestic Abuse wherever that occurs. 

Discretionary Fees and Charges Policies 2025 / 26 

(i) That the 2025 / 26 discretionary Fees and Charges policies attached as 
Appendix 3 to the Council agenda, be approved;  

Page 6



(ii) That the revised 2024 / 25 Fees and Charges schedule for Building
Control attached as Appendix 4 to the Council agenda, be approved. 

333. MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL

The Council noted the list of Committees that had met before and since the last 
meeting of the Council, up until Monday 30 September 2024 for which Minutes had 
been published. 

334. QUESTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE 6(3) OF WHICH NOTICE
HAS BEEN GIVEN 

There were none. 

335. BOUNDARY COMMISSION REVIEW OF ELECTORAL WARDS

The Council considered the report of the Director of Strategy and Resources updating 
Members on the commencing Boundary Commission review and seeking 
establishment of a Member Working Group to support the process. 

The Assistant Director – Programmes, Performance and Governance presented the 
report advising that the Boundary Commission was due to review electoral boundaries 
and Member numbers in the Maldon District, for the first time since 2000. The Council 
was required to submit estimated polling district figures and Member numbers required 
for effective governance to the Boundary Commission to inform the proposals that they 
will put out for public consultation.  

The report requested that a Working Group be established along with delegation to the 
Assistant Director to submit the required information in consultation with the Working 
Group. In addition to this Working Group an officer group had been established to help 
inform this work and the project.  

Members were advised that the Boundary Commission would be giving a presentation 
to all Members on Tuesday 12 November 2024 at 6pm and be available to answer any 
queries on the review. 

The Chairperson moved the recommendations set out in the report. The Leader of the 
Council proposed that recommendation (i) be amended to allow the appointment of 
nine Members, politically balanced. He then suggested that each political group appoint 
two representatives along with one non-aligned Member. This amendment was duly 
seconded and agreed. 

The Chairperson then moved recommendation (ii) as set out in the report and this was 
duly agreed. 

Nominations were then sought from each of the Group Leaders for the Working Group 
and the following agreed: 

Political Group Nominations 

Conservative Group Councillors S J N Morgan and M E 
Thompson 

District Support Group Councillors J C Stilts and W Stamp CC 

Liberal Democrat Group Councillor J Driver and P L Spenceley 

Maldon District Independent Group Councillor R H Siddall and M G Bassenger 

Page 7



The Leader of the Council proposed that Councillor A M Lay be appointed as the non-
aligned Member on the Working Group. This was duly seconded and agreed. 

RESOLVED 

(i) That a Member Boundary Review Working Group is established, politically
balanced, and the following Members are appointed to the Working Group: 

Political Group Nominations 

Conservative Group Councillors S J N Morgan and M E 
Thompson 

District Support Group Councillors J C Stilts and W Stamp CC 

Liberal Democrat Group Councillor J Driver and P L Spenceley 

Maldon District Independent Group Councillor R H Siddall and M G Bassenger 

Non-aligned Councillor A M Lay 

(ii) That submission of Maldon polling growth estimates and the suggested profile
are delegated to the Assistant Director of Programmes, Performance and 
Governance, in Consultation with the Member Boundary Review Working 
Group. 

336. APPOINTMENT OF RETURNING OFFICER AND ELECTORAL REGISTRATION
OFFICER 

The Council considered the report of the Director of Strategy and Resources seeking 
Members’ appointment of a new Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer 
with effect from 14 October 2024. 

It was reported that under the Representation of the People Act 1983 (sections 8 and 
35), the Council must appoint an Officer to the position of Returning Officer and 
Electoral Registration Officer. With the recent appointment of Doug Wilkinson as Chief 
Executive the report sought to appoint the two positions to the role of Chief Executive. 

The Leader of the Council presented the report and following this the Chairperson 
moved the recommendation as set out in the report. 

In response to a comment made regarding the impact on financial resources, the 
Chairperson advised that all costs had been budgeted for. The Leader confirmed that 
Mr Wilkinson had advised that he was keen to become the Returning Officer. 

The Chairperson put the recommendation to the Council, and this was duly agreed by 
assent. 

RESOLVED that Mr Doug Wilkinson, Chief Executive, is appointed as both Returning 
Officer and Electoral Registration Officer with effect from 14 October 2024. 

337. 2024 / 25 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS

Following his earlier announced, the Chairperson advised that this item of business 
would be considered next. 

The Chairperson moved the proposed change to the Performance, Governance and 
Audit Committee due to take place on 7 November 2024, as set out on the Council 
agenda. This proposal was duly seconded and agreed. 

Page 8



In response to a request to reinstate the corporate diary, the Director of Service 
Delivery advised that he would raise this with the Corporate Leadership Team, making 
reference to there previously having been a resourcing issue. 

RESOLVED that the Performance, Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
scheduled for 7 November 2024 be moved to Thursday 5 December 2024. 

338. APPROVAL OF ABSENCE OF COUNCILLOR

The Council considered the report of the Monitoring Officer seeking Members’ 
consideration as to whether the absence of Councillor S White should be approved 
should she be absence for six months from Council meetings. The report also sought 
Members’ consideration of an agreed extension to this absence. 

Members noted Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 set out how if a Member 
had not attended any meeting of the authority for a period of six consecutive months 
they ceased to be a Member of the authority. The report referred to the attendance of 
Councillor White and reported that since 28 May 2024 she had been unable to attend a 
meeting due to ill health. Should Councillor White not attend a Council or Committee 
meeting by 28 November 2024 she would lose her seat and no longer be a Councillor 
for the Purleigh Ward. This matter was being brought to the Council as this was the 
only scheduled Council meeting before the expiry of the six-month rule. 

The Lead Specialist: Legal and Monitoring Officer presented the report and explained 
that a decision was required before the six-month period ended. It was not clear if 
Councillor White would be able to return in November which is why an extension to 13 
February 2024 was requested. Should Councillor White attend any meetings before the 
six-month period ended this extension would not be required and the six-month 
timescale would restart. 

The Chairperson moved the recommendations set out in the report. These were duly 
seconded. 

In response to a question, the Officer confirmed that she had been in contact with 
Councillor White who had advised she wanted to return and not stand down as a 
District Councillor. 

The Chairperson put the recommendations, and these were duly agreed. 

RESOLVED 

(i) That Councillor S White’s permitted period of absence beyond the six-month
period of non-attendance provided for within Section 85 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds of ill health be approved;  

(ii) that a further extend the permitted absence for Councillor S White beyond the
six-month period until the 13 February 2025 be agreed. 

Councillor D O Bown and W Stamp left the meeting at this point and did not return. 

339. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FROM MID AND SOUTH ESSEX INTEGRATED
CARE BOARD 

The Council considered the report of the Corporate Leadership Team sharing a letter 
from the NHS Mid and South Essex Integrated Care Board (ICB) (attached as 

Page 9



Appendix 1 to the report) and seeking Members’ consideration of a request set out in 
the letter. 

The letter from the NHS advised that it had decided to delay the final decision on the 
reconfiguration of community hospital beds, midwife led birthing unit and ambulatory 
care services for six months. The ICB was proposing to form a Working Group that 
would focus on further engagement and co-development. The Council was invited to 
take part in this Working Group which would include representatives from the NHS, 
local authorities, community groups and other key stakeholders. 

The Leader of the Council presented the report, advising Members that the Council 
would not talk to the NHS regarding Council assets, and should such items be raised, 
the Council would leave any discussions at that point. 

The Chairperson moved the recommendations as set out in the report. 

In response to a question from Councillor M F L Durham regarding the validity of the 
Council considering the report, the Chairperson informed the Council that in line with 
the Council’s Constitution as it was an Officer led report this could be considered. 

During the lengthy debate that followed there was some concern raised regarding 
whether the Council could take part in the proposed Working Group following its 
previous discussions about engaging with the NHS and use of the Councils assets. 
Further information was provided, and the Chairperson advised that this was not 
related to the request from the ICB to have the Council at discussions with other 
stakeholders.  

In response to a request to increase the Council’s representation on the Working 
Group to allow the four Political Group Leaders to attend, the Leader of the Council 
reminded the Council this was an ICB Working Group to which the Council had been 
invited. He felt that four would be too many and suggested two representatives 
advising that any request to increase in the number of representatives from the Council 
would have to go back to the ICB for its consideration.  

There was some confusion regarding where the request for one representative had 
originated from, and to assist Members, the Chairperson read out the letter from the 
ICB to the Leader (Appendix 1).  

In response to further discussions regarding the number of representatives the Council 
could have on the proposed Working Group, the Leader advised that when he 
responded to the letter, he would seek clarification over the number of representatives 
that the NHS would accept from the Council. If additional representatives were allowed, 
he would go back to Groups Leaders and seek their nominations. This was noted by 
the Council. 

The Chairperson then put the recommendations as set out in the report, subject to an 
amendment to recommendation (ii) removing reference to a named substitute, and 
these were duly agreed.  

RESOLVED 

(i) That Members consider the request made by Mid and South Essex ICB to
engage in a Working Group (the Working Group) as set out in paragraph 3.1 of 
this report below;  

Page 10



(ii) that subject to approval of recommendation (i) above, the Council appoints the
Leader of the Council to represent Maldon District Council on the Working 
Group; 

(iii) That when the Leader of the Council responds to the request, he queries the
number of representatives that the Council can appoint to the Working Group 
proposed; 

(i) That subject to (iii) above, if additional representatives are required to the
Working Group that these are appointed by the Political Group Leaders. 

340. QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL IN ACCORDANCE WITH
PROCEDURE RULE 1 (3)(M) 

In response to a question from Councillor A S Fluker regarding the recent Leisure 
Contract extension and report to consider the new Leisure Contract, the Leader of the 
Council referred to the delay in bringing the report forward, explaining that the new 
contract would be a 20-year contract and it was important for Members to be involved 
in the decision-making process. Part of the delay was also to enable involvement of the 
new Chief Executive who started on Monday 14 October. 

Referring to the Government’s decision to restrict the winter fuel payment to only 
pensioners in receipt of means tested benefits, Councillor W J Laybourne asked the 
Leader of the Council if he would consider writing to the Chancellor of the Exchequer 
urging a review of the decision and asking the Government to ensure that vulnerable 
pensioners, particularly those who do not claim pension credit, were protected from fuel 
poverty. She also requested that the Leader encourage local efforts to promote 
pension credit uptake through Council services and partnerships with local charities 
and community organisations. In response the Leader agreed with Councillor 
Laybourne’s comments and advised he would write a letter if it was what Members 
wanted. He provided further information relating to the Government’s decision and 
commented on the work done by the Council’s Revenues and Benefits team to support 
customers. 

Councillor S J N Morgan referred to the Strategy and Resources Committee’s recent 
decision regarding dredging at the Hythe Quay and asked the Leader of the Council if 
consideration could be given to the barge owners and visiting yachtsmen using the 
town quay paying a dredging surcharge to contribute towards the cost of the dredging. 
The Leader of the Council disagreed and provided the Council with detail regarding the 
dredging, importance of the barges for Maldon’s heritage and how carrying out the 
work would ensure the situation did not get any worse. He explained that the Working 
Group appointed by the Strategy and Resources Committee would need to ensure the 
work took place and the dredging was maintained for the future to ensure future visits 
from barges and yachtsmen. 

Councillor M F L Durham referred to the current Government’s policy to reform Local 
Government this parliament and asked the Leader if the Council if the Council had 
been taking account of the fact that it may not exist in five years. In response the 
Leader of the Council advised that he had been discussing this with the Corporate 
Leadership Team. In addition, having recently attended a meeting of the Essex 
Leaders where this was discussed he understood that the three Labour Councils in 
Essex had met with ministers, but it was unknown at this time what would happen. He 
was aware that the Government did not want devolution with three tiers, just two tiers. 

Councillor K M H Lagan asked the Leader of the Council if he could advise him in 
writing when in respect of the Leisure Contract the Council determined a 20-year 

Page 11



contract would be let rather than a 15-year contract. The Leader agreed to respond to 
Councillor Lagan in writing. 

Councillor M E Thompson felt that the Leader had not answered the question from 
Councillor Morgan regarding whether main users of the wharf should make a 
contribution towards the dredging to show they were the main users of the facility. In 
response the Leader advised that he didn’t think such a contribution should be made. 
He reminded the Council that the barges paid wharfage and the Council made money 
from visitors using the Promenade Park car parks.  

There being no other items of business the Chairperson closed the meeting at 8.29 pm. 

K M H LAGAN 
CHAIRPERSON 

Page 12



 

Our Vision: Where Quality of Life Matters 

REPORT of 
MONITORING OFFICER 

to 
COUNCIL (EXTRAORDINARY) 
14 NOVEMBER 2024 
 
COUNCIL CONSTITUTION UPDATE – NEW CORPORATE LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
 The purpose of this report is to seek Council approval to some further consequential 1.1

changes to the Constitution in the light of the appointment of a Chief Executive and 
Deputy Chief Executive in place of the existing Corporate Director posts. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
(i) That the Council agrees the proposed revisions to the Scheme of Delegation 

documents as detailed in APPENDICES A and B to this report to take effect 
from 2 December 2024; 
 

(ii) That Officers continue to be authorised to make any further consequential 
updates to these and associated Constitutional documents to reflect the 
change in the corporate leadership structure. 

 

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES 

 
 The Council has agreed to introduce a new corporate leadership structure involving 3.1

the appointment of a Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive in place of 
Corporate Directors. Both appointments have been made and the appointees are in 
post. Throughout November 2024 transitional arrangements will be made with 
reporting lines from the existing Directorates being established with effect from 2 
December 2024. 
 

 Alongside this, the Constitution needs to be updated to reflect the shift in 3.2
responsibility from the existing Corporate Directors to the new Chief Executive and 
Deputy Chief Executive. The immediate changes need to be reflected in Part 3 
Scheme of Delegation, in both the General Provisions document which includes a 
range of Proper Officer designations, and then in the actual Scheme of Delegation 
itself to ensure the continued ability to exercise such delegated powers and 
functions. 
 

 APPENDIX A to this report is an extract from General Provisions document 3.3
scheduling those previously approved designations involving a Director and/or where 
a change of Officer is involved. These proposals are supported by the Corporate 
Leadership Team (CLT). It also picks up on a required change to the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules. 
 

 The Scheme of Delegation itself has recently been the subject of change agreed by 3.4
the Council and which saw significant delegation in the Service Delivery Directorate 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



moved from the Director to the relevant Assistant Director to reflect the functional 
responsibility arising from the restructure of that Directorate. For now, all that needs 
to happen is the reallocation of the residual delegation to both existing Directors to 
either the Chief Executive or the Deputy Chief Executive. It is proposed that this 
follows the reporting lines that will take effect from the beginning of December with 
Chief Executive broadly taking on the Strategy, Resources and Governance area, 
and the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing the Service Delivery area. The Director 
of Strategy, Performance and Governance had previously absorbed the delegation to 
the Director of Resources, and it is felt that this element can now feature as new 
delegation to the Chief Financial Officer. 
 

 APPENDIX B to this report is the contents page extract from the Scheme of 3.5
Delegation itself with proposed revisions in red where the Scheme is affected by the 
current changes. Again, this is supported by the CLT. 
 

 The Scheme of Delegation (General Provisions) document in the Constitution also 3.6
provides that “In the absence of Director or other authorised Officer, or in the event of 
their inability to act in the exercise of a delegated power or function, another Director 
may exercise that power or function should the need arise”. It is proposed that is 
revised to read -  
 
In the absence of the Chief Executive or other authorised Officer, or their inability to 
act, the Deputy Chief Executive may exercise that power or function should the need 
arise, and vice versa. 

 

4. CONCLUSION 

 
 The proposed revisions to the Scheme of Delegation are necessary to reflect the 4.1

agreed change to the corporate leadership structure of the Council. These changes 
do not affect the substance of the areas of delegation involved. 

 

5. IMPACT ON PRIORITIES AS SET OUT IN THE CORPORATE PLAN 2023 - 2027 

 
 Provide good quality services. 5.1

 
5.1.1 Clear and effective delegation will assist improved performance and efficiency in 

decision-making which in turn will contribute to the quality of services provided, and 
functions undertaken by the Council. 

 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(i) Impact on Customers – None directly, though a clear framework for decision 

making can only improve the potential operation of the Council’s services and 
functions. 

(ii) Impact on Equalities – Not applicable. 

(iii) Impact on Risk (including Fraud implications) – None directly, though a 
clear framework for decision-making can only reduce the potential for risk in 
the exercise of the Council’s functions. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – Not applicable. 

Page 14



(v) Impact on Resources (human) – Not applicable. 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Enquiries to: Stuart Jennings, Corporate Governance Project Officer. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

(Updated – April 2024) Scheme of Delegation  
(General Provisions) 

PART 3 – SCHEME OF DELEGATION (GENERAL PROVISIONS) 
 
The following extracts highlight those previously approved delegations involving a Director 
and / or where an Officer is involved. The proposals are supported by the Corporate 
Leadership Team. 
 
2. STATUTORY OFFICER AND OTHER DESIGNATIONS 

"Proper Officers" 
 

The Local Government Act 1972 
Section of Act Functions Proper Officer 

89(l)(b) Receipt of notice of casual vacancy from 
two local government electors 

Director of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
Governance Chief 
Executive 

100 D(5)(a) Identification of background papers 

In joint reports a 
Directorthe Chief 
Executive and in all 
other cases the 
Assistant Director - 
Programmes, 
Performance and 
Governance 
Manager  

100 F(2) Papers not open to Members 

Director of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
GovernanceChief 
Executive 

115(2) Receipt of money due from Officers 

Director of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
Governance Chief 
Financial Officer 

l46(l)(a) & (b) Declarations and certificates with regard to 
securities 

Director of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
Governance Chief 
Financial Officer 

 
Data Protection Act 1998 

Section of Act Functions Proper Officer 
 Data Protection Officer Senior Lead 

Specialist - Legal 
 

  

Page 17



APPENDIX A 

(Updated – April 2024) Scheme of Delegation  
(General Provisions) 

Local Government Finance Act 1988 
Section of Act Functions Proper Officer 

S116 

Notification to auditor of the date, time and 
place of a proposed meeting to consider a 
report under Section 114 and of any 
decision made at the meeting. 

Director of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
Governance Chief 
Executive 

 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

Section of Act Functions Proper Officer 

 For all matters relating to the Act 
Director of Service 
Delivery Deputy 
Chief Executive 

 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 

Regulation Functions Proper Officer 

9 Disclosure of confidential information 

Director of 
Strategy, 
Performance and 
GovernanceChief 
Executive 

 
 

(i) In the event of any other notices being required to be served under any other Section 
of the Local Government Act l972 or any other enactment, and not otherwise specified 
in the Council's Scheme of Delegation, the Director of Strategy, Performance and 
GovernanceChief Executive is designated the "Proper Officer". 

 
(ii) The Assistant Director - Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager is 

recognised as the Officer responsible for giving public notice of the time and place of 
meetings pursuant to Section 100 A(6)(a). 

 
(iii) The Assistant Director - Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager in 

consultation with the "Proper Officer" as appropriate, is recognised as the officer 
responsible for provision of the Agendas and Reports for public inspection pursuant to 
Sections 100 B(1) and 100 E(1) of the Act. 

 

Delegation to Officers – General (continued) 
 
9. The authorisation of directed surveillance under the provisions of the Regulatory 

and Investigatory Powers Act 2000 to the undermentioned Officers: 

• Director of Strategy, Performance and GovernanceDeputy Chief Executive 
(as Senior Responsible Officer); 

• Specialist Services ManagerAssistant Director – Customer Services and 
Operations; 

• Monitoring Officer. 
 
10. Emergency Action – Any DirectorThe Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive is 

authorised to act in emergencies, and where time permits in consultation with the 
Leader of the Council and Chairperson of appropriate Committee(s) 

Page 18



APPENDIX A 

(Updated – April 2024) Scheme of Delegation  
(General Provisions) 

11. Consultations – A DirectorThe Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive, in liaison 
with the relevant Lead Member (Committee Chairperson or Leader of the Council), is 
authorised to respond to consultation documents where the period during which a 
response is required does not allow the matter to be reported to the relevant 
committee or where the consultation is of a predominantly technical nature. 

 
 
 

PART 4 – ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE RULES 
 
Below highlights a proposed change paragraph 12.3 of Part 4 – Access to Information 
Procedure Rules. 
 
12. MEMBER ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 

 A Member has a common law right to be provided with or to inspect Council 
documents that it is reasonably necessary for them to see in order to carry out their 
duties as a Councillor. A Member wishing to exercise this ‘need to know’ right must 
inform the Director of Strategy, Performance and GovernanceChief Executive in 
writing of the document they wish to see together with information in support of their 
claim to have a ‘need to know’. The decision of the Director of Strategy, Performance 
and GovernanceChief Executive as to whether or not the right is demonstrated shall 
be final. 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
PART 3 – RESPONSIBILITY AND FUNCTIONS 

SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 

CONTENTS 
 
1. To the Director of Strategy, Performance and GovernanceChief Executive 

Assets of Community Value 
Corporate Projects 
Staffing 
(As Electoral Registration Officer) 

2. To the Director of ResourcesChief Financial Officer 
Financial Management 
Staffing 
Local Development Land 

3. To the Head of Paid Service 
4. To the Assistant Director: Planning and Implementation 

Development Management 
Enforcement of Planning Control 
Environment and Conservation 
Building Control 
Neighbourhood Planning 
Others 

5. To the Assistant Director: Place and Community 
Housing 
Environmental Health and related licensing / regulatory matters 
Licensing 

6. To the Assistant Director: Customer Services and Operations 
Community and Leisure 
Asset Management 
Rivers Management 
Others 

7. To the Director of Service DeliveryDeputy Chief Executive 
Development Management 
Staffing 

8. Licensing Act 2003 
Head of Service (Environmental Health, Waste and Climate Action): 
Environmental Health Manager- Environmental Protection: 

9. Gambling Act 2005 
Head of Service (Environmental Health, Waste and Climate Action): 

10. Other Licensing Functions 
To the Assistant Director- Place and Community 

11. To the Monitoring Officer 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 8 October 2024
	Minutes

	9 Council Constitution Update - New Corporate Leadership Structure
	Appendix A
	2. Statutory Officer and Other Designations
	"Proper Officers"
	Delegation to Officers – General (continued)

	12. Member access to information

	Appendix B

	13 Leisure Contract Procurement Update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	14 Updated Capital & Investment, Minimum Revenue Provision and Treasury Management Strategies 2024 / 25
	Appendix 1 (revised)
	Appendix 2 (revised)
	Appendix 3 (revised)


